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AN HISTORICAL SKETCH OF MAONTCLAIR.

THE CENTENNIAL CELEBRATION,

e

a Celebration of the Centennial
Anniversary of National Independen:e,
on July 4th, 1876, was one which had

@HE question of having in Montelair,

occasionally been suggested as the time

approached; but the general desire to
celebrate throughout the country, and
the demand whica would consequently
be made upon speakers from abroad,
made it scem impracticable to secure
such an orator as would meet the re-
quirements of the occasion, so that no
movement was made m this town until
about the 20th of June. It having been
intimated that an orator of unusual abil-
ity could be secured tor the occasion, a
public meeting of citizens was held at
the Town Committee rooms, when Dr,
J. J. H. Love was called to the chair,
and Thorndike Saunders, Esq., appointed
secretary, and, after sufflciently consid-
ering the matter a large committee of
citizens was appointed to take charge of
the celebration—provided that a speaker
co{nld be secured.

The general committee met on the
24th of June, when it was decided to
have a celebration on the Fourth of July
in the following manner:

First.—A sunrise, noon and sunset
sulute and bell ringing; raising of flags
at the time of firing sunvise salute.

Second.—A public meeting during the
day, with prayer, music, reading the
Declaration of Independence and ora-
tions; provided, that one or more ora-
tors can be obtained for the occasion,
who shall be acceptable to the General
Committee.

Third. —Illumination of the houses of
the town, of the mountain by beacon
lights, and by fireworks in the evening.

The various connnittees were then ap-
pointed as follows:

Committee on salute, bell ringing and
flag raising, (first resolution): Messrs, J,
R. Rand, William Jacobus, E. J. Huestis,
William A. Torrey.

Committee on public meeting and
speaker, (second resolution): Gen. Fred-
erick H. Harris;, Messrs, Thomas Porter,
Thorndike Saunders, Hon.Samuel Wilde,
Williamm A, Torrey. Julinus H. Pratt,
William H. Arnoux. ‘

Committee on INlumination and fire-
works, (third resolution): Willlam A,
Torrey, William Sigler, Thomas A, Levy,
W. Irving Adams, J. R. Thompson.

The following was then unanimously
adopted: ' '

Resolved, that a committee of ten be appointed
to take charge of the collection and disburse-
ment of the money subscribed toward the neces-
sary expenses of this occasion.

The committee consisted of the fol-
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lowing named gentlemen: William B,
Holmes, chairman; P. H. Nan Riper,
Henry A. Dike, Philip Doremus, W. L.
Bull. AL B. Howe, Oscar S. Follett, Wil-
liam A, Torrey, Julins I, Pratt, J. L.
Andruss, W, Irving Adams,

Mr. O. 5. Follett, was appointed Treas-
urer. .

The next meeting was held on the 27th
of June. at which reports were received

of favorable progress from the several

committees excepting the committes on
public meeting, who were compelled to
report that it was impossible for them to
secure the orator they had expected,
although the services of Mr. G. H. Elhot,

soloist, and of the Montclair Choral Union
had been tendered to furnish music for

the occasion. The members of the gen-

eral committee were greatly disappoint-
ed, and, it was suggested that the cele-
bration be abandoned. This was not
deemed advisable in view of the public
expectation on the subject and the com-
mittee were requested to make further
efforts to secure an orator.

~ The use of the Presbyterian Church
and Jacobus' Hall was offered free, and
the committee passed a resolution of
thanks for generous offers, but decided
to hold the exercises in the Presbyterian
Church, at the same time appointing J,
Ogden Clark, Esq., a committee on dec-
oration of the same.

At the meeting of the committee held
on June 20th, the commniittee on publie
meeting again reported their inability
to secure an orator, and on motion of
Mr. J. Van Vieck, chairman of the Town-
ship Committee it was—

Resolved, That this committee add its request
to that made by the Township Committee last
vear, * that Dr J. J. H. Love and Gen Fred-
erick H. Harris prepare for publication an his-
torieal sketeh of the Township of Montelair, in-
cluding such ftems of local interest as may seem

"H OF MONTCLAIR.

to them approprinte; and, that any funds that
remain unexpended of the money raised for
the Fourth of July celebration, be applied to the
printing of this sketch,

Resolved, That the committee be requested to
have a platform erected in the chareh, and that
the oldest citizens of our own town be invited to
svats thereon. )

Resolved, That the ministers of the several
churches be invited to make addresses on the
occasion,

ORDER OF THE DAY,

The heat on Independence day was in-
tense, but the following programme was
carried out:

At sunrise.—Ringing of bells, Salute
of 13 guns on Plymouth street and flag
aising. ’

PUBLIC EXERCISES

1876.

1776.

———

“f\\h\l‘ CE LL‘BR,, 7‘§

(J‘é

.Z MONTCLAIR. N, J==

g«. 'y @?omtlll 1576

Ivac-snmle o/ PrOJrammc I‘nllc Page (rerlucod)

The exercises in the Presbyterian
Church took place at 10 o'clock in the
morning, the church having been taste-
fully decorated with flags by Mr. Clark,
and, the platform being occupied by the
clergymen and many older citizens (pro-
vided with badges for the occasion),
among whom were Rev, Abner Bran-
dage, Nathaniel R. Dodd, Timothy A.
Crane, Zenas S. Crane, Joseph H. Bald-
win, Amos Crane. William H, Harris,
Charles Kingsley and others.
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PROGRAMME.

1. Voluntary on the organ,"Grand Centennial
March "

2. Prayer..... . ..... ... Rev. A Brundage

3. National Hymn.......... **‘America," by the
“Montclair Choral Unjon * and the Audi-
ence, :

4. Reading of the Declaration...By Dr. C. A.
Marvin., :

6. Solo. “Viva L'America,”.......... By G. H.

Elliot, Esq., assisted by Chorus,

6. Historical Reminiscences of Montelair.. By
Dr. J. J. H. Love,

Whittier's Centenn 2! Hymn..By the Choral
Union,

Addresses..... By Rev. Dr. Berry, Rev. Mr.
Bradford and others.

9. Doxolrgy.
10. Benediction.

After the reading of the historical
sketch by Dr. J. J. H. Love, Mr. Geo. S,
Dwight arose and proposed, ** that the
hearty thanks of the meeting, on behalf
of the community, be tendered to the
gentlemen, namely, Dr. J. J. H. Love
and Gen. F. H. Harris, who had so
ably compiled, and presented, so inter-

.-‘l

wn

esting a paper upon the history and sta-
tistics of the township of Montclair,”
This motion being unanimously car-
ried, its mover, referring to an old fash-
ioned custom therein related, suggested,

“that in consideration of the long con- .

tinued and tireless services of Dr. J. J.
H. Love on behalf of our educationul
interests (not to mention other good
works) it should henceforth be ordained
that the old-time practice be revived,
and that the chilgren of the schools pass
him or stand before him always with
uncovered heads.”

This suggestion met with much enthu-
siasm and applause.

REVOLUTIONARY RELICS.

The following revolutionary relics

were displayed at the church:

1. Genuine Chinu tea cup and saucer formerly
the property of Gen. Jonathan Trun:. ,ull, the
original ** Brother Jonathan.”

2. Pair of shoe buckles and knee buckles,
worn in mourning for the death of Gen. George
Washington 1799 and 15800. .

8, Two thirds of a continental dollar 1776.
4. Old family Bible 1608
5. Copy of large Catechism 1757.

6. Order of Gen. George Washington to Lieu.
tenant William Torrey 1781.

7. A Proclamation for a day of Thanksgiving
by Gen. Trumbull,

8. An old chair brought from England, and
used in front of pulpit in old log church at Strat-
ham N. H. This chair is 140 years old,

At noon.—Salute of 13 guns accom-
pained by ringing of bells,

At sunset,—Salute of 13 guns and bell
ringing.

The canon used on the occasion was
secured by Mr. W, A, Torrey, from the
Navy Yard—for which a vote of thanks
was passed by the committee to Secretary
of the Navy, Hon. George M. Robeson,

A grand pyrotechnic display was wit-
nessed by a large multitude on Plymouth
street, near Clinton avenue at 8 p. m,,
and at 9} the general illamination of
Montclair with several beacon fires of
barrels of burning tar and petroleum
on the mountain presented a most bril-

liant spectacle.

Thus ended a celebration which was
considered by all a decided success and
one of the most important that had ever
taken place in Montclair,

*We learn from the records of the
Township Committee that on the 106th of
June, 1875, a resolution was adopted as

follows:

Resolved, That the committee feel a Just pride
fn the success of our village, and believe that
it will increase in attractiveness in the future as
in the past—and realizing the importance of se-
curing some accurate recovd of the many inter-
esting events connected with the past history of
town, as well as those now transpiring, request
that a committee compile an historical sketch
of its organization and a statement of its pres-
ent condition, accormpanied by such other facts
connected therewith as may come to their

knowledge.
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TME MISTORICRL SKETCH.

Ladies and Gentlemen and Fellow Citi-
zens:—We have undertaken to prepare
and read to you, on a very short notice,
and while pressed with urgent avoca-
tions, a history of Montclair for the past
hundred years. Col. Harris has pre-
pared the papers and collated the facts,*
and 1 will endeavor to read them. If
any of you shall grow weary during their
recital, we beg your kind indulgence,
and would respectfully suggest that
this thing has only to be gone through
once in a hundred years. We have had
no time to go forth into the field of ora-
tory, and gather its flowers, to give
color and fragrance to our reunion,

There is in the surrounding circum-
stances an inspiration, which amply
atones for its absence in the elocution of
the speaker. Two transcendent tributes
the century brings to this National Ora-
tion the first proclaimed to the world one
hundred years ago to-day, asa funda-
mental truth—the right of the people to
a voice in the administration of thewr
political systems. The second secured
bjy the recent war, the assertion and ap-

*NorE—The Exordium and peroration, as well
as the portions of the sketch relating to the war
records and schools, were prepared by Dr. J. J.
H, Love.

L B

plication to our system of universal
emancipation,

Well may the American heart be stir-
red toits depths, as it is to-day by these
achievements, in the cause of truth,
justice and humanity,

HISTORICAL SKETCH,

_During the year 1664, King Charles the
Second, of England, conveyed by patent
to his son James, Duke of York, the ter-
ritory extending from the Connecticut
river to the Delaware river, which he
again conveyed about the same tine, to
Lord John Berkeley, and Sir George Car-
teret.

In 1678, the portion of this territory
known ns East Jersey, was devised by
Carteret, one of the proprietors, and
sold by his trustees to William Penn,
Robert West and others, to the number
of twelve, as proprietors, who claimed
as had been claimc(rby Berkeley and
Carteret, a sort of right of ‘“*eminent
domain over the whole section.”

Montclair was included in this terri-
tory and is located on the easterly slope of
a spur of the Highlands, a range ranning
sonth-westerly from the Hudson river,
and was known as the Watchung Moun-
*ain, by the Sagamore and other tribes of
Indians. who owned and occupied it, It
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is a part of the first territorv purchased
from the Sagamore Indians in 1666—the
chief negotihtor on their part being one
Perreo, a Sagamore chief—by the colony,
which came from Milford, Branford,
Guilford and New Haven, in the province
of Connecticut, among whom were fam-
ilies of Baldwins, Cranes, Wards, Dodds
and others, the first settlers of Newark,
and extenderd from the Passaic river, to
“the foot of the first great monutain
called Watchung.”

The price paid was ¢ fifty double hands
of powder, one hundred bars of lead.
twenty axes, twenty coats, ten guns,
twenty pistols, four barrels of beer, two
pairs of breeches, fifty knives. twenty
hoes, eight hundred and fifty fathoms
of w:lmptim, two ankers of liquor (say
thirty-two gallons,) » something equiv-
alent, ten kettles, ten swords three coats
and four blankets.

The second purchase was made from
the Winocksop and Shenoctor Indians,
the ownersof ** the great Mountain Wat-
chung.” on the 18th of March 1678,
sfor two guns, three coats and tinrteen

AA]

cans of rum, extending the limits to the
top of the mountain—and including the
celebrated ** Eagle Rock ” so named from
the fact that in days of yore, cagles
built their nests there, and from which,
in these later days, thousands of visitors
are delighted with the panorama, the
counterpart of which is not to be found
in the length and breadth of this coun-
try.

The original settlers of this section, as
will be observed, if we consider whence
they came, were of Puritan stock. Many
of them had fled from England to Hol-
land, and thence to New England to es-
cape oppression and persecution. for
conscience sake,

In New England there were thi:e col-
onies—one at Plymouth Mass., one at
Hartford, called the colony of Connecti-
cut and another at New Haven,

The colonies of Connecticut, and New
Haven, had just previous to that time,
been erected into a single province, by a
royal charter. That action had caused
much dissatisfaction in the New Haven
colony, &s it was broughtaboutina very
arbitrary manner and involved the aban-
doment of some of their favorite princi-
ples; they Fed from the old world, ** to
establish a purer church and common-
wealth,” and the Connecticut colony as
then established did not meet their high
ideas—they were dissatisfied with many
of the things that prevailed there, espec-
ially what was known as the * half way
covenant,” which permitted persons not
in full communion with the church to
enjoy the privileges of church member-
ship, and allowed the baptism of .infants
of parents not in full communion, they
also wished that no person, not in full
communion with the church, should en-
joy eclective franchise, or be elected to
any owil office: thence originated the
idea of a new colony to this place.

Pioncers had visited this section and at
a popular meeting held in Milford, May
2th, 1666, at which delegates were pres-
ent from Branford and Guilford, to con-
sider the subject. A resolution,*to form
a new colony at Newark, on the Pas-
sainc” was adopted, their object being
as they declared, * the carrying out of
spiritual concernments as also of civil
and town affairs, according to Godand a
Godly government.”

In accordance with this programme,
in the latter part of the year (1666) they
chartered a sail vessel, and set out for
the new country, expecting to encoun-

.
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ter the dreary wilderness, savage beasts,
and more savage men, but willing to en-
dure all that, to accomplish their object.

On arriving at Newark, they were
met by obstacles not expected; when
they commenced to unload upon the
shore, they were surprised to see a com-
pany ot- Hackensack Indians, who or-
dered them off, as * encroaching upon
the unaccupied territory without a pre-
vious purchase.”

It was also brought to their notice
that the English proprietors had enacted
“that all such persons as shonld trans-
port themselves into the province of New
Jersey, should be entitled to grants, or
patents, under the seal of the province,
paying therefor the rent of half a penny
sterling for every acre to be granted,
and that the lands should be purchased
by ihe English Governor and Council
from the Indians, in the name of the
Jand proprietors, and every settler wes
to pay his proportion of that purchase
money and charges.

This unexpected announcement pro-
duced despondency, and some would
have been glad to have returned to Con-
necticut. Others differed from them,
and notwithstanding the position of the
proprietors, asserted ‘‘that the heathens,
as part of the descendants of Noah, had
a rightful title to their lands, and that
therefore they themselves had a right to
negotiate with them (the Indians), and
make their own purchases,”

The Governor, however, reluctant to
lose a colony of so much promise, made
with them a compromise, which induced
them to remain, and as above stated,
they proceeded to make their own pur-
chases of the Indians,

The controversies concerning the guit-

rents continued about a century; by
agreement of the parties, the whole mat-
ter was finally submitted to arbitrators,
whose decision confirmed the right of the
proprietors, and thiew the cost upon the
landholders, and so things remained un-
til the Revolutionary war put an end to
the claim.’}

The territory thus acquired by a moral
right from the Indians, who were satis-
fied, and scemed to have always lived in
harmony with thesettlers, and by a legal
right from the laud proprietors, em-
braced the present city of Newark, and
the towns of Orange, Bloomtield, Mont-
clair, Belleville and Clinton,

Their ideal of perfect civil and reli-
gious state of society could never be re-
alized, but a bright vision of the future
furnished to them a sufficient motive for
making the effort.

The territory now included within the
limits of the Township of Montelair, is
about five nnles long, and about two and
a half wide—originally a part of New-
ark. It was settled about the middle of
the seventeenth century, afterward it
wis set off from Newark and was a part
of the Township of Bloomfield.

The Township of Montelair was set
off, and incorporated, on the fifteenth
of April 1868, and the first election was
held April twenty-first following, for the
election of town ofticers, This separa-
tion was caused by a decided difference
of opinion as to the practicability of
bonding the township in aid of the Mont-
clair Railway Company. An act for
that purpose having been introduced in
the Legislature, was generally opposed
by the citizens of the easterly portion of
the old township, while those in the
western portion favored it. The act was

finally passed applying to the new town.
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ship, which had been created in the
mean time.

The upper or northerly portion of the
town wasoriginally settled by the Speers,

Van Giesons, and others of Dutch extrac-

tions from Hackensack, and was called
Speertown, The southerly portion was
settled by the Cranes, Baldwins, Dodds,
and others, and was called Cranetown,
And notwithstanding some were of
Dutch and others of English origin, they
have always lived in harmony, being
thoroughly united in their resistance to
the quit-rents of the Englizh proprietors
and the tea-tax of the British crown,
ad, in these days they have become so
mixed, that like the fabled good step-
mother's children, we can hardly tell
them apart.

The line which divides the descendants
of the Dutch colony that settled at Hack.
ensack, from the English colony that set-
tled at Newark, extends very nearly
across the northern portion of the State,
each having proceeded west from the
original starting point, carrving their dis-
tinctive peculiaritics and ecclesiastical
differences with them, as is manifest to
thuse who hasve considered the matter,
and this line divides our township, and
others in the same manner; thus we find
the Speers and Van Giesons, attendants
upon the Dutch Reformed Church—and
the Cranes, Baldwins and others, origi-
nally attending the Congregational,
afterward Presbyterian Churches.

The southerly portion of the township
continued to be called Cranetown until
about the year 1831, when the post office
was established by the name of West
Bloomfield.

It was soon, however, found that diffi-
culties arose in consequence of the prox-
imity to Bloomfield, and the similarity of

names often perplexed and inconve-
nienced travelers on the railroad, and
mail matter was often directed to the
wrong place, and about the year 1865,
the name of the post office an} railvoad
station was changed to Montclk i, which
has been the name of the plice since

that time.

ROADS.

There were originally two principal
roads ruanning through the town—one
from Paterson to Orange, nearly in the
track of the present Valley and Orange
roads, the other from Caldwell to Newark
entering the township near the present
Mountain House, and running thence to
the house now occupied by Amos Crane;
thence to the present publie school build-
ing and past the Presbyterian Church
and the store of Israel Crane to Bloom-
field.

There were also three cross mn‘ds: the
course of on: was from Williamsville to
Bloomfield, passing the property of Cal-
vin Taylor; the second from Brower's
mill to Parson’s mill, and the third from
Thomas Porter's property, on the corner
of Orange road and Union street, to the
‘top of the mountain, at a point west of
Henry W. Nason's house, where it inter-

sected the Eagle Rock road.

AN ANCIENT LANDMARK.

At the southwest corner of the Pater-
son road and Watchung avenue, for-
merly called Oak Tree road, just east of
the line dividing the town of Montclair
from Bloomfield, stands an old, anti-
quated house whose history is particu-
larly interesting in these centennial
times, It is built of stone, and is about
twenty-five feet square,

Lime was not known in these parts at

the time of its erection, and clay was
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used as a substitute. The bricks that
were used in its construction were made
of clay, and are of a peculiar shape, to
wit: nine inches long and but one and
a half inches thick.

The house was built by one Christian
Interest, who was born in Hesse Cassel,
Germany, and emigrated to America in
1754

He married a daughter of Peter Gar-
rabrant, an old resident of this locality.
Mr. Interest was a conscript in the reign
of Queen Anne, his period of enlist-
ment expiring subsequent to the year

1774, After his arrival in this country,

he worked at the same trade which our

late worthy and lamented Vice-President
followed during his earlier years. He
traveled, as was the custom of those
days, from house to house, with his kit
on his shoulder, remaining at each Louse
long enough to make and repair the
shoes for the family.

At the breaking out of our revolution,
Mur. Interest beiug friendiy to our cause,
feared that the Hessians would discover
who he was, and knowing the allegiance
he owed to his king, that they might
compel him into service again, There-
fore, to insure his safety, he dug a dry
well some twenty feet deep under the
floor of his bed-room, where he was ac-
customed to secrete himself on the ap-
proach of the Hessian troops,

He would take with him into hig re-
treat, food, bedding, ete., and fastening
down the trap-door, the only entrance;
he would remain there until the danger
was passed, He often had occasion to
resort to this place for safety. The well
and trap-door are now in the same con-
dition as when used by Interest, one
hundred years ago.

In the centre of the front wall is a

freestone slab about a foot square, bear-
ing the letters and tigure following:

HEART.

The *“ C" at the left indicates Chris-
tian; the “ F” at the top Frouche, the
wife of Christian; and the *I” at the
left, Interest. The **F” is placed at the
top of the slab to indicate that the prop-
erty belonged to Frouche. If it belonged
to both, according to the Dutch custom,
the letters ““C” and “ F” would have
been placed at the top of the slab. It
was the custom sometimes, in place of
the heart, 17 carve two hands joined
together, or some symbol indicating
affection. It was a very general custom
among the old Dutch settlers of the
country, to insert plates of this kind in
their houses.

In the wall near this tablet, the exact
spot being indicated by metes and
bounds, in the old gentleman's will, is a
tin box let into the freestone, which con-
tains the family records, heirlooms con- -
sisting of shoe and belt buttons, two or
three inches square, and some German
and American coin,

The old gentleman is described as one
of peculiar eccentric habits and ideas.
He dug his own grave and made hisown
coffin, so as to cause as little trouble

as possible to his friends.

HOTELS.

The first hotel was established by
Stephen Fordham, in the house now
occupied hy Amos Crane, on Valley
road, which house is said to be about
190 vears old, and during the Revolution-
ary War, was occupied by General
Washington, as hisheadquarters for sev-

eral day.s.
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About the year 1810, a public house
was opened in the house now belonging
to Mrs. Emmons Munn, by Simon Crane,
opposite the present public school build-
ing, and that gave place to one on
Bloomfield avenue, which was kept for
several years by Capt. Joseph Munn and
is now kept by Mr. E. E. Wright; they
were always well kept houses of enter-
tainment. Several others have been
established within the past two or three

years.

BUSINESS INTERESTS,

The mercantile,‘manufacturing and
business interest during that genera-
tion (1810), were very large, and proba-
bly larger than at the present day.
They embraced several boot and shoe
manufactories, cottor. and woolen weav-
ing and printing establishments, as well
as stores which supplied a large extent
of country in the north:crn portion of
the State. The busiuess of manufactul-
ing a very supertor article of cider from
Harrison ard Canfield apples, which
was knrwn throughout the land as
* Newark Cider,’
in this town; and, it is said, that at one
time, t bout 6,000 barrels of cider were
manufactured per annum, It is also
stdted that long after the manufacture
of cider had ceased in the city of New-
ark, tlat article manufactured here,
could be obtained throughout the coun-

was largely carried on

try.

LAYING THE TURNPIKE.
Among the first of the prominent
public enterprises that have proven so
beneficial to Montclair, was the building

of the Newark and Pompton turnpike
road. The charter was first secured from
the Legislature in March, 1806, and the
work of construction wascommenced as
goon thereafter, as a sufficient amount of
the capital stock had been subscribed, «a
part of which stock was made payable
in work,

Theline of the road necessary to make
a direct route to Newark, cut many tracts
of land diagonally, leaving the lots in
bad shape, and many gore lots; the con-
sequence was, that much difficulty was
encountered in securing the right of
way, and the work progressed slowly.

Then came the old conflict between
the public interestsas repres. ted by the
corporation, and the personal interests
as represented by the individual; it was
asked by the opponents, * What right
had this corporation todisarrange every-
thing, and then compel the people to
pay toll for the use of the road?” It
resulted as such conflicts generally do,
in the building of the road.

There was a great feeling of indigna-
tion amony the opponents. One person
is said to have shot and killed an ox at
work on the road in front of hisgrounds.
Some of the people went to other places
of worship to avoid traveling on the
turnpike, though free to those going to
and from church; and, in cases where
the old road diverged from the new,
they ntanifested their contempt for the
new road, by traveling on the old thor.
oughfare, This feeling has long since
passed away, and the beneficial effects
of that enterprise have continued to be

felt and appreciated.

e s
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PROMINENT MEN,

HE EBaldwins of this and previous
@generations descended from the orig-
inal John Baldwin, who located in the
city of Newark, and by a succession of
Johas and Josephs the line of descend-
arts continued until we come to Capt,
John Baldwin, (father of the present
Joseph H. Baldwin). He was a highly
respected man and bore a military title,
which in those days, (the early part of
this century), was deemed a matter of
great honor; he was also at one time a
member of the State Legislature,

Deacon Caleb Baldwin was a man
fine abilities and extraordinary piety,
and for a long time a strong pillar in the
Presbyterian Church, at Bloomfield.

Nathaniel H, Baldwin, partner of
Capt. Joseph Munn, was a prominent
business man, the only hat manufactur-
er at that time, in this section of the
county, and the first postmaster of West
Bloomtield, which office he held until the
time of his death. He was a man of great
liberality, honored and respected by all,
and among other things, presented to
the Presbyterian Society, of this place,
the valuable lot upon which the old and
new parsonages now stand.

Deacon Azariah Crane aud Seargent
Jasper Crane, lived at the foot of the

mountain, and fgom them have descend-
ed our venerable fathers Timothy,
Zenas, Matthias and Amos of the pres-
ent day. Among the most distinguished
of the members of this family was
Major Nathaniel Crane, whose home
was the house now occupied hy Stephen
A, Frost, Esq. He was a great am-
ateur of sacred music, being for many
years the leader of the choir in the
First Presbyterian Church, of Orange,
and was tendered the thanks of that par-
ish for his valuable services on several
occasions at their annual meeting, He
gave to the Presbyterian Church their
bell, and in his last will he gave the
most of his estate (about $10,000), to the
use of the Bloomfield church, with the
proviso that when a Presbyterian Church
was formed here, the income of the
property was to go to the new parish,
Among the prominent members of the
Crane family we note Deacon Joseph
Crane and his two sons, Daniel and
Noah, who were educated for the min-
istry, being men of considerable talent
in their profession; among others that
may be mentioned are Deacon Oliver
Crane and his son Stephen Fordham,
who was an elder in the Montclair Pres-
byterian Church. Also Joshua Crane, a
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ISRAEL CRANE.

e




AN HISTORICAL SKETCH OF MONTCLAIR. 15

deacon in the Baptist Church, at Bloom-
field, and his brother Josiah, an officer
in the Methodist Church.

Israel Crane, a descendant of Wm,
Crane, was a man of marked abilities.
In early life he proposed to enter the min-
istry, but after prosecuting his studies
for a considerable time in the Princeton
college, was obliged to relinquish that
purpose, owing to the failure of his
health., He then turned his attention
to business pursuits and for a long period
carried on in the stone house, standing
on the north side of the Old road, near
the present residence of his son James
Crane, Esq., a more extensive and lucra-
tive businessthan any other merchant in
this section of the courty. For years, his
was the only store between Paterson and
Orange, or Caldwell and Bloomfield, and
notwithstanding the fact that he was one
of the most prominent business men in
the county, he tilled his place to the end of
life, as an elder in the Bloomfield Pres-
byterian Church. He was the leading
man in building the turnpike road be-
tween Pompton and Newark, now
known as Bloomfield avenue, and was
one of the most efficient founders of the
Bloomfield Academy, which at present,
is vccupied as the German Theological
Seminary, He died in 1838, at the age
of eighty-four years.

Gideon Wheeler came to Montclair
from Connecticut, about sixty years ago,
and wai for several years the prin-
cipal of the public school in this place.
He was a man of decided ability, and
earned such a reputation as g teacher,
that pupils, in order to be under his in-
struction came from other districts to
attend his school, He also acted as Jus-
tice of the Peace. "

Moses Harrison, a man of strong sense

and original character carried on busi-
ness here for a number of years, He
had an unusually keen appreciation of
the ludicrous and was a man of fine
social qualities and an entertaining com-
panion beloved by all.

Deacon Matthias Smith wads a man of
remarkably cheerful, genial, happy tem-
perament, whose memory will never fade
from the minds of those who knew him,
He was for many years an elder in the
Montclair Presbyterian Church, and was
thoroughly in earnest for the cause of
truth and right at all times,

Deacon John Munn, alsoan elder in this
church, has left his mark for good here;
he was one of the most prominent busi-
ness men of the county and represented
the county of Essex in the Legislature
of the State, during one term.

Captain Joseph Munn was long known
as one of the leading business men and
citizens of the town, and was one of the
most prominent Free Masons of the
State of New Jersey.

Peter Doremus was for over thirty

. years a merchant of much prominence;

his store was built on the north side of
the turnpike, 1811, and was occupied by
him until near the time of his death,
and since, by his son Philip. He was
also for some time an extensive manu-
facturer of cider.

We have thus briefly sketched some
of the men of the past generation who
have passed away, and the ancestors of
many of the older inhabitants of this
town, They were industrious and fru.
gal as is shown by the homes they built
and left to their descendants.

Such a group of men, most of them
remarkable for great age and piety, can-
not be forgotton; their influence for
good, will never be lost on this commu-
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nity, and the memory of their virtues
will furnish a stimulus to their descend-
ants,

We cannot refrain from mentioning
some who have more recently come
among us and who benefitted our sec-
tion:

Dr. Henry Lloyd came from New
England during the war; his business
expanded his views, as he embraced the
world in it, being a manufacturer of a
celebrated map, bearing his name. He
always took a deep interest in educa-
tional matters here; was a trustee of
the public school, and an exceedingly
efticient superintendent of the Sunday
school of the Presbyterian Church, He
died April 1868, beloved by all.

Prof. Wm, B. Bradbury was a man of
world-wide reputation.” His music is
sung in every land, and by all people,
He was a man of extraordinary personal
magnetism s a leader of music and
an individual; a man of great energy
and enthusiasm, and was among the
most valued citizens, not only of our
town but of the country. He died tri.
umphantly, January, 1868.

Robert M. Hening, a native ot the
State of Ohio, came to Montclair in
1860, and manifested the utmost interest
and zeal for the welfare of this town,
IIe was a member of the Bosrd of Free-
holders, of the county; was twice a can-
didate for the Legislature, and in both
cases was honored by receiving votes
from the opposite party. He was essen-
tially a gentleman, kind, courteous,
polite; and a man of great liberality.
He was instrumental in having the

name of the town changed to Mont-
clair, and was very active in pushing
forward the mew railroad enterprise.
He died January 1875, at the age of
ﬁvfty—nine yvears. .

Dr. J. Henry Clark was a physician of
prominence in this county of Essex, He
graduated at the New York University,
in 1841; practiced wmedicine in the city
of Newark for over twenty years before
he came to Montclair. He was promi-
nently connected in that city with the
organization of the Park Presbvterian
Church, and exhibited much literary tal-
ent. often writing articles for newspa-
pers, on miscellaneous subjects, and was
the author of several medical works
among which were ** A History of Chol-
era,” “Sight and Hearing,” and** The
Medical Topography of Newark and
Vi'cinity.” He took a deep interest in the
question of temperance (often writing on
that subject); of railroads, schools, the
Bible and tract societies and kindred en-
terprises. He was the son of Rev. Daniel
A. Clark a prominent Presbyterian cler-
gyman, and was related to Abraham
Clark, one of the signers of the Declara-
tion of Independance. He died during
the early part of the year 1869, at which
time he was President of the Essex
County Medical Society, and was en:
gaged in preparing for publication an
Encyclopedia of diseases,

May those who two hundred years
later, have followed our fathers and
their fathers to this place, from New
England, and elsewhere, emulate their
virtues, "while they stimulate our zeal
for the public good.
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RAILROADS.
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@HE.NGW(\P‘( & Bloomfield Railroad
Company was chartered about the
year 1834, The first Board of Directors
consisted of Joseph A. Davis, Ira Dodd,
Wright F. Conger and Jason Crane of
Bloomfield, and Grant J. Wheeler. \Vm,
. Harris and Jurel E. IIurrison of
West Bloomfield,

The comparatively small population,
and limited means of the people of the
township of Bloomfield, and the differ-
ence of opinion among them s to the
best ronte and termination, made it very
difficult to get the necessurj' subscrip-
tions to the capital stock. Some citizens
thought that the new railroad should
take a route to the Morris Neighbor-
hood, while others, in this vicinity, ar-
gued that it should be built and termi-
nate here,

An arrangement was first made with
the New Jersey Railroad Company, by
which they proposed to endorse the bonds
of the new road and thus help to secure
its construction, aud two of their repre-
sentatives were elected members of the
new Board of Directors. The delays on
their part wearied the people, and a
“railrond war” broke out about that
time between the Morris & Essex Rail-
road Company and the New Jersey

Riilroad Company. An arrangement
was finally effected with the Morris &
Essex Company by which they weve to
subscribe $33,000 to the cavi‘al stock, to
which were added the private individaal
subseriptionsin the sum of $30.000, mak-
ing the total of $103,000—the amount
nec2ssary to build the road from Rose-
viltle to West Bloomfield, By this ar-
rangement, the latter company relieved
itself of a valuable privilege, namely,
the right of way for the Bloomtield
route, which they had granted to the
New Jersey Railvoad Company, and

which was considered to be worth as

much as the amount of their subserij.
tion to the stock, The work of grading
and constructing was begun in 1833, and
completed in 1836.

THE MONTCLAIR RAILROAD.

The new railroad known as the Mont-
clair Railway, which was has so favor-
ably affected the material interests of
Montclair, grew out of a desire on the
part of some of the citizens, the wmost
prominent of whom were Julius H.
Pratt, Robert M. Hening, Samuel Wilde,
and others, for better accommodation
than had been afforded by the road then

in existence,
A charter was obtained from the
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Legislature in 1867, authorizing the con-
struction of a railway from Jervsey City
to the State line at Greenwoaod Lake, and
after a great effort had been made to se-
cure its construction_ the road was prac-
tically completed and in operation in
18i2. ’

The township of Montclair aided the
enterprise, by the issuing of its bonds,
to the amount of %200,000.

The favorable effect of this railway
has been apparent in the increased value
of property, especially in the northern
portion of the township, and in the
healthful competion awakened in the
management of the old road, which has
reduced its running time between Mont-
clair and New York twenty minutes, and
has greatly improved its rolling stock
and all other appointments,  As the re-
sult of this competition, passengers will
be carried, durinyg the present year, from
Montelair to New York by either road in
from 45 to 50 minutes, or one-half hour
quicker than at the time the Montclair
railway was projected,

These railways have  completely
changed the character of our town,
from a sparsely settled agricultural re-
gion to a community of clegant subur-
ban homes.

o4

e

MONTCLAIR LIBRARY.

On February 231, 1869, at a meeting
alled in the lecture room of the Presby-
terian Chureh, it was resolveil that a
Library Association be formed, and a
constitution adopted. At a meeting one
week later, a constitution, drawn up by

a commillee appointed for that purpose,

consisting of G. S. Dwight, Israel Crane,
and J. W, Taylor, was submitted and ap-
proved, and a Board »f Directors elected.
Without funds, excepting such as were
obtained from subscription, fees and pub-
lic entertainments, the Library Associa-
tion, had by A\'lay 1st, 1870, collected over
200 volumes, many of them being stan-
dard works, by the best authors,

During the Winter of 70 and "7t a char-
ter. was obtained from the Legislature,
under which the association was granted
permission to issue stock, to an amount
not exceeding $50,000. During the Sam-
mer of 1871, Mr. N. O. Pillsbury, kindly
agave the use of a lot 30 feet front on
Fullerton avenue, to the Library Associa-
tion, and on this ground the present
buildings, containing two commaodions
rooms, was erected. It was occupied
for the first time in December 1871,

The growth of the Library has been
slow but steady, the books having in
seven years increased from 60 to nearly
2,000 in numb'er, and have been stea lily
growing in demand. The whole nm-
ber of stockhollers and subscribers
last year was 144; the total number of
books taken out was 4,800, an increase
of 583 over the previous year. The Li-
brary is strictly a public institution, its
managers have until the past Winter
been able to carry it on without soliciting
donations of a single dollar.  In conse-
quence of the pressure of the times,
however, public entertainments have
not been renwmerative, and a very im-
portant source of income was thus cut
off, making it necessary to solicit assise
tance. and $130 has been raised hy do-
nation, a part of which money was
eredited to subscriptions, which are now
used by persons who have not the means
to subscribe,

e sl e
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OUR CHURCMES.

e et ———

(27 YO place for religious worship was
(3}) - erected in the westerly section of
the town, until the year 1837, previous to
which time it had been the custom of
the prople to meet at the public school
building for prayer and conference.

The inhabitants had generally attended
service at the Presbyterian Churches in
Newark, at the First Church in Orange,
and afterward a number of them went
to Bloomtield and others to Caldwell, as
churches were being erected at those
several places.

PRESBYTERIAN.

A mweeting was held here, August 17,
1£87, “to cuansider the propriety of a
separate  organization;” and, on the
31st of the same month, it was effected
by the election of trustees of the West
Bloomfield Presbyterian Society,

The public school building, standing
in front of the present church edifice,
was purchased and enlarged; the first
floor was occupied for a lecture or con-
ference room and pastor's study, and the
second floor for church services. It was
dedicated, Aug. 9th, 1888, at which time
the church was organized and the elders
installed,

Rev. Samuel Fisher, D.D., was the first

pastor, and this church wag his first
charge. The Sabbath school connected
with it, was established in 1816, and is
believed to have been the first in the
township.

The present church edifice was dedi-
cated Nov, 12th, 1856. The bell was a
gift from Miss Mary Crane, and was rung
for the first time while standing on the
door-step, on the Sunday before it was
raised to its place in the belfry,

The building was erected at the time
when the Newark and Bloomfield Rail-
road was being built, and requirved a
great effort on the part of the compara.
tively small number of res’dents con-
nected with the parish at that time,

EPISCOPAL.

St. Luke's Church was erected in the
year 1843, by Mr. John Wilde and others,
chiefly by those interested and emyloyed
in the calico print works(now Wheeler's
mill). and was occupied with more or less
regularity until May 23th, 1838, when it
was resolved to reorganize, and a vestry
was elected, There was no settled pastor
from that time until about June, 1860,
when Rev. George R. Davis became its
pastor, and so remained until 1862; from
that time until November, 1864, the
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church was again without a regular
pastor. Rev. Mr, Crystal then became the
rector and continued until May, 1867,
when Rev., J, L. Maxwell, the present
rector was called in.

In the Spring of 1860, the n=w stone
church building, on St. Luke's avenue,
wits commenced, and on Eister Sunday,
April 17th, 1871, was first opened for
worship. The ground, about two acres,
upon which the church is built, was a
donation from Robert M. Hening, Esq.,
and the cost of the church was $33,000.
In 1860, the number of communicants
was thirty, and of families in the parish
twelve. In 1876, the number of commu-
nicants is one hundred and twenty-five
and the number of families in the parvish
ninety.

METHODIST.

About the year 1825, the ground upon
which  Washington schooliouse was
shortly afterward erected, was purchiased
for $20.

vide a suitable building in which to edu-

The object in view was to pro-

cate the children then employed in the
mills of John Wilde, but as children and
purents worked in the mill during the
week, and as the only time for instruce-
tion was Sunday, a Sunday school was
established, holding two sessions a day.
The pupils studying spelling, veading,
writing and other branches as well as
the Bible, '

The room was full from desk to door;
parents sat beside thenr children and
learned the same lessons, and also attend-
ing the preaching service every Sabbath,
John Regdeliffe was superintendent of
the school and Gorline Doremus an
active assistant,

This was the birth of Methodism in

Montclair,
ministers “of that denomination spent

In after years several noted

many of their Sabbaths in the Stone |
Schoolhouse, Among them were Bishop
Janes, John Berkely, John K. Shaw,
John Coit, Isaac N. Felch, and others,

In a few years the society needed a
larger and more commodious place of
Mr. James Wilde donated &
lot on the turnpike, a short distance east
of Elm street, to the Methodist Episco-
pal Society, upon which were erected a

worship,

church and parsonage, both of which

are now standing.

The church was completed and dedi.
sated in November, 1836, and Rev, Mr,
Burrows was its first settled pastor.

ROMAN CATHOLIC.

We have endeavored to obtain com-
plete statistics of the Catholic Church,
in this place, but have only secured the
following factsi—The corner-stone of
the present edifice was Jaid by Bishop
Bailey, with appropriate services, about
the year 1838, snd the building was
erected by Moses Cadmus, contractor, on
the lot on the south side of Washington
street, east of and near Elin street, and
is capable of seating about five hun-
dred persons. It is surmounted by o
Lelfry which contains two pleasant
sounding bells. |

The first pastor was the Rev, Father
Hogan, and the present pastor is Rev.
A, M, Steetz,
ing and the people of the parish mani-

Its congregation is grow-

fest much enthusinsm in the worship.

CONGREGATIONAL.

A desire being felt by many citizens,
who had previously bean connected with
the Congregational Churches in New
England and elsewhere, for the forma-
tion of a Congregational Society in this
place, the first meeting for that pur-
pose was held at the residence of Mr, J.
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B. Beadle, December 18th, 1869, at which
meeting it was unanimously, resolved,
“That believing that the interests of the
cause of Christ in this place demand the
organization of a new church and so-
ciety, we do pledge to each other our
mutual and hearty support in such an
enterprise.”

A committee was appointed, who re-
ported on January 17, 1870, recommend-
ing a call for a meeting for the organi-
zation of the society, in a:cordance with
which it was effected January 29, 1870.
After adopting ¢ By-Laws for the Soci-
ety.” articles of faith and the covenant,
the first religious service was held May
294, 1870. at the residence of Mr, Beadle,

A public religious service was held in
Pilisbury Hall, which had been fitted up
as a place of warship, Juae ath, 1870,
and on the 28th of June of the same
vear, the Rev., A, II. Bradford was unan-

imously called to become the pastor.

Soon after, the society commenced the
crection of the beautiful stone edifice,
now standing on the corner of I"ullerton
avenue and Plymouth street, cap:ble of
seating about seven handred persons. It
was dedicated October 13th, 1873, with
appropriate services,

The relations betwusen the pastors and
people of the verious churches have
always been of the most pleasing and
friendly nature.

UNITARIAN.

¢ The Unitarian Society of Montclair,
was organized in October, 1868. It num-
bered between thirty and forty mem-
bers.  For the firsi two years, the pulpit
was filled by different clergymen of
other Unitanian Societies,

In 1830 the Rev. J. B. Harrison became
the regu'ar pastor, and continued to
serve in that capacity until 1873, Since
that time, Mr. A. John Bellows has con-
ducted the services of the society.
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PUBLIC SCHOOLS.

st

THE FIRST SCHOOL BUILDING.

As nearly as can be ascertained the first
schoolhouse was -built, about the year
1740. It was a one-story stone building
18 by 26 feet, fronting toward the east,
and stood at the junction of the Old road
(now Church street), and the road lead-
ing to Orange, about 250 feet south of the
present schoolhouse, on land now owned
by Oliver Levi.
place in one corner, and flat desks or
tables placed around the sides of the
room, far enough from the walls, to ad-
mit of benches being placed between the
All the seats were

At one end was

There was a large fire-

desks and the walls.
slabs, bark-side down.
an ovalshaped, elevated platform, known
as the rostrum for the teacher, with a
trap door in the center, through which
evil doers were occasionally sent into the
cellar, Among the earlier teachers were
Messrs, Watts Crane and Hugh Thomp-
son,

Dr. Chapman, a minister of the gospel
in Orange, from 1766 to 1800, came regu-
Iavly every two weeks on Saturday to
catechise ‘the children in this school-
house, The old gentleman always rode
on horseback, and when seen coming,
the whole school, with the master at the
head. arranged themselves in file, along

the roadside und waited with uncovered
heads, until the minister passed by, dis-
mounted and entered the building,
when they all followed.

This schoolhouse, becoming old and di-

lapidated, was torn down during the
Summer of 1812, and -the stones were
used in the construction of

THE SECOND SCHOOLHOUSE

Which was built in that year, on land
purchased of Parmenus Dodd, through
Israel Crane, at the junction of the Old
road, with the Turnpike, about 50 feet
vast of the present Presbyterian Church,
It was of stone, two stories in height,
and 22 by 40 feet in size, The second
story was used for religious services.
Gideon Wheeler, taught school in this
building for many years, where he earned
considerable of a reputation as a teach-
er, and pupils came to his school from
many of the neighboring districts.

This house and lot were sold in 1838,
for $400. to the society of West Bloom-
field Presbyteriun Church, and soon
after,

THE THIRD SCHHOOLHOUSE

was erected on ground purchased from
Ira Campbell, west of and near the Pres-

hyterian Church. The building still

e
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stands, and is used by that society asa
lecture room. 1t was sold to the church
in 1860, for $5800., Mr. E. C. Fuller
taught school in this building very suc-
cessfully for many years. In 1860,

THE FOURTH SCHOOLHOUSE

known as the northerly wing of the
present school building, was built onland
purchased of Grant J. Wheeler. It was
constructed of brick, 35 by §0 feet, two
stories in height, and cost including
land, heating apparatus, and furniture
$6.021.84. Mr, John H. Morrow, was
the first teacher in this building.

In 1866, the whole number of children
of school age in the district was 315; the
amount of money paid to teachers in
salaries, was $1,750, and the amount
raised for special district tax §1,800.

At the annual school meeting of the
same year (viz, 1866), the trustees were
directed to ascertain the cost of a clas-
sical teacher, and report to a special
mee:ing.»

At this special meeting the trustees
were ordered to proceed immediately to
establish a High school; and, in their
endeavors to secure the services of a
teacher competent to fill the position of
principal, the trustees became acquaint-
ed with, and engaged, John W. Taylor,
Sept. 1st, 1856. To this gentleman’s tact,
enthusiasm and ability in school work,
the district is largely indebted for the
success which has crowned their efforts
to possess a good and popular school.

THE FIFTH SCHOOLHOUSE

In this district was erected in 1839,
Leing the south wing of the present
building. It was demanded because the
house built in 1860 would not accommo-
date all the pupils, This building, in-
cluding heating apparatus and furniture,
cost $11,000,

In 1870 Mr. Taylor resigned the posi-
tion of principal, and Mr. John P. Gmss,
of Maine, was elected to fill his place.

In 1873, the building again beruning
crowded, another wing was added to the
eastern portion, this being

THE SIXTH SCHOOLHOUSE
Erected in this district. It is 36 by 39
feet, and cost, including furniture, heat-
ing apparatus, ete., $13,000, making the
total cost of the present school build-
ing, a little over $31,000, The whole
building will seat 609 children,

At the end of the school year of 1874,
Mr. Gross resigned the position of prin-
cidal. after baving successfully con-
ducted a class of 13 through the High
school, to whom the trustees awarded
the first diplomas given Fy them as a
board of trustees, Mr. Randall Spaul-
ding the present cfficient principal was
then chosen and still continues in that
position. '

The school census of 1873, reported
670 children of school age in the dis.
trict, and 536 as attending the school.

The district raised by special tax this
year, (1870), $12.000, and Over $10,000
are annually expended for teachers’ sala-

ries.
MOUNT HEBRON SCHOOL.

From the earliest records. a school has
existed at Speertown or Upper Mont.
clair. The first house, hecoming old and
worn out, was torn down, and a new
ane known as the Red schoolhouse was
buijlt in 1825. This was taken down to
muke room for a larger and better one
in 18060, which is uow occupied for that
school purpose.

WASHINGTON DISTRICT SCHOOL,

The facts in reference to the erection
of the Washington school house in the
eastern part of the town, have already
been stated.
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WAR RECORD.

)

) HE followinz named citiz ns of this
é% town, were enrolled and performed
duty as soldiers in the Revolutionary
army. There were seventeen in all, and
the names sound familiar, as we have
many here with us to-day of the same
families, worthy grand-children of these
Revolutionary sires:

Samuel C. Ward, El}nkin Crane, John
Vincent, Benjamin Crane, Moses Harri-
son, Van Gteson. Nathaniel DoAd, Juseph
Baldwin, Oliver Crane, William Crane,
Joseph Crane, Major Nathaniel Crane,
Aaron Crane, Amos Tompkins, Levi
Vincent, John Smith, Matthias Crane.

During the occupation of New York
city, by the British troops, posts of ob-
servation were maintained at several
points along our mountaiin, the largest
and most important of these was known
as Rifle Camp, near the Great Noteh, and
traces of it could be seen only a few yeurs
ago, while it isa well authenticated fact,
that Genera! Washington ade the For-
dam House, (now Mr. Amos Crane's) his

headquarters for a time.
WAR oF 1812

In the War of 1812, the only citizens of
this town, who are known to have taken
an active part therein, were Zenas S,

oo

>

Crane, John Munn, Richard Romer,
and Captain Joseph Munn.

Taptain Joseph Mumn was captain of
a company of cavalry. raised in this
focality, and went from here, with Ius
company to Pennsylvania, to aid in the
suppression of the whiskey insurrection
in that State, during the second Presi-
dency of General  Washington, _whao
called upon the militia of the varions
States to secure the prompt and faithful
exceution of the laws upon the insur-

gents,

We have no record of any troops hav-
ing been furnished by this town, to the
Mexican War,

WAR OF THE REBELLIOX,

’l‘hevfuilm\'ing'lmnwd citizens of this
town, were enrolled in the United States
service, during the recent war of the
Rebellion: .

Edward Moran the first man to Volun.
teer from this town, for the defence of
the city of Washington, was enrolled
and mustered in as a member of the
Seventh Regiment from New York city,
and was afterwards connected with the
naval serviee, ' ,

Among those who enlisted for three
yoears in Coinpany B., ith Rogiment, N. J.
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Vols., were John H. Jacobus, Stephen P,
Willinms, Albert Woodruff, (died of dis-
ease), John Dickinson, (killed); Henry B,
Ball, (killed).

For three years in the 8th Regiment,
N. J. Vals,, John B. Bull, Charles Madi-
son, Nicholas Bradle, John Coyne.

For three yearsin the 13th Regiment,
N. J. Vols,, Rotert Madison, William J.
Madison, John B. Munn, James Taylor,
John Webster, James Kane, David Mc-
Namara.

Fred., H. Harris, entered the service as
Captain of Company E., of the 13th Regi-
ment, N. J. Vols,, in August, 1862; was
promoted to the rank of Major, August
16th, 1864; to that of Licut, Col. March
26th, 1805, and rveturned home at the
close of the war, June, 1835, During his
service he had command of a Brigade
and was twice breveted by the President
of the United States, once for ** gallant
and meritorious service in Georgin and

the Carolinas.” und afterwards, for gal-
lant service i the battle of Bentonville,
North Carolina.

*John J. 1. Love, served as Surgeon of
the 18th Regiment, N. J. Vols,, for nearly
two years.

Dr, John J. H. Love, was appointed
Volunteer Surgeon, hy Governor Olden,
of this State, in April, 1862; and, assisted
in the transportet’~n and care of the
wonnded, after the battle of Williams-
burg, May Sth, 1882, being engaged in
that service about thirty days, He was
*hen commissioned surgeon of the 13th
Regiment, N. J. Vols.. July 19, 1862;
mustered into the United States service,

August 235th, 1862, and was assigned to

*The gallant Doctor, in writing this sketch
of the war, was too modest to give his own
record, and we therefore supplement it by
this statement, taken from the * Ofticial
Records.”

duty, March 231, 1863, as Surgeon-in-
Chief of the 31 Brizade, 1st Division.
12¢h Aviny Corps; and, August 1st, 1803,
as Surgeon in Chief of 1st Division, 12th
Corps in the Army of the Potomac; he
served with d stinction in this po-ition,
and returned home with the rank of
Lieut. Colonel.

Joseph W. Nason, who after a service
of nine months in the 26th Regiment, N.
J. Vols,, went out as 1st Lieut., Company
., 89th Regiment, N. J. Vols.

So far as we can at present recall the
fucts, the following named  persons,
served their country for nine months, in

Company F., 26th Regiment, N. J. Vols.:

Ist Lieut, Willinm R. Taylor, William
Egzbertson, corporal: James I1. Williams,
corporal; John M. Corby, corporal: Ed-
win F. Dodd. corporal; Peter Arnold,
Alfred ‘I, 1. Church. John Collins,
Henry A, Corby, William H. Corby,
James B. Crane, Edwin Dodd, Horace
Doldd, Henry Glass, Cornelius Delha-
gen, Monroe Harrison, John H. Hennion,
Richard Jacobus, Charles Johuson,
Charles Leist, Elias W, Littell, John D.-
Penn, Peter King, Joseph W, Penn,
George W, Post, William A, Riker, Mor-
timor \Whitehead, Thomas Somerville,
John Speller, George Ungemah, John G.
Van Gieson, John M, Wheeler, Albert E.
Muun, John J. Reese, Joseph W, Nason.

Of these men, Lieut. Joseph W, Nason,
John M. Wheeler. Nicholas Bradle, John
B. Munn, Charles Littell, James Taylor,
and Peter King sleep in soldiers' graves.
They went from us full of life and with
light hearts, to vindicate the cause of
liberty and free Government; they came
not back.

Lieut. Nason was killed on the skirm.
ish line in front of Petersburg.
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| Nicholas Bradle was killed at. the bat-
tle of Williamsburg,

- James Taylor at the battle of Antie-’

tam,

John M. Wheeler at the battle of
Fredricksburg. May, 1868.

Charles Littell died from disease in
front of Fredricksburg, and John B.
Munn, who was orderly sergeant of
Company E., 18th Regiment, N. J. Vols,,
was killed at Chuncelloysville,

May we not hope that ere another de-
cade has passed, a suitable monument
may be crected to the memory of these
dead patriots. We enjoy the privilvgﬁa
for which they gave their lives. It is
right and proper that some suijtable ac-
knowledgement, should be made by us
ere the facts have faded from the mem-
ory of this generation.

Such my friends are a few of the—

Great volces of the glorious past,
Proud muster roll of fame,

The festal hour fleets all too fast
~Tocall each honored name,

We bear them in our heart of hearts,
And full of grief we bow

In memory of the old time friends,
Who are not with us now.

The battle days. the camp-fire talk,
March, bivouac, retreat,

All eome to nind to-day, except
The memories of defeat.

These too would come did we not feel
That in this day's grand light,

In that great war's supreme result
all elss passed out of sight.

We stand before the workl to day, as
the equal of any of its great powers.
All the nations of the earth come as con-
tributors, to the jnmumerable products
of industry, science, art, taste and
genius, and now have their exposition
in a neighboring State,

This is the priceless inhentance which
we are called upon to guard by a con:
scientious and enlightened discharge of
our duty as good citizens. May we, by
courage, by constancv, by unconquerable
endurance to save, endow our country
with new life, and give hope and confi-
dence to the friends of freedom, through-
out the civilized world,




